MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST NR Eligible: yes
NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM no

Property Name: Wigfield Complex Inventory Number: AL-II-B-032

Address: Off of Wagner Road, 4 mi. north of route 51 City: Oldtown Zip Code:

County: Allegany USGS Topographic Map:  Oldtown Quad
The Maryland Department of Natural Resources, Tawes State Office Bldg., 580 Taylor Avenue E-3, Annapolis, MD,
Owner: 21401

Tax Parcel Number: Tax Map Number: Tax Account ID Number:

Project: Razing request for Wigfield log structures Agency: Maryland Department of Natural Resources

Site visit by MHT Staff: _ x no __yes Name: Date:

Eligibility reccommended Eligibility not recommended x

Criteria: A B C D Considerations: A B C D E F G x None
Is the property located within a historic district? _ x no  yes Name of district:

Is district listed? =~ no _ yes Determined eligible? _ _no __ yes District Inventory Number:

Documentation on the property/district is presented in:

Listing in the Marvland Inventory: A survey form was completed in 1976 by John Nelson. Joan Baldwin. and Steve

Beale and another was completed by me in 2000.

Description of Property and Eligibility Determination: (Use continuation sheet if necessary and attach map and photo)

The Wigfield Complex consists of three structures: a mid-19" century log house and log barn ruin, as well as a frame shed
dating from the early 20th century, that are located in a stream valley along a tributary of Town Creek.

The hand-hewn log house is two-stories tall, three-bays by one-bay wide, with V-notching and wood slab chinking. The log
sills rest directly on the ground and these, along with many of the other logs, are deteriorating slowly; however a standing seam
tin roof is still keeping water out of the structure. Over the past few decades it had been converted into a barn with hay storage
on the second floor. The log barn ruin appears to have been only one-story tall, with construction details similar to the log
house; but it is severely deteriorated and overgrown with vegetation. The frame shed is one-story tall with a corrugated tin
roof, vertical wood siding, and circular sawn lumber.

These three structures exhibit utilitarian, log and frame construction characteristics common in Western Maryland, and do not
meet the Criteria of the National Register. While they do not meet the standards of the National Register, the two log
structures do represent examples of vernacular log construction from an early period of settlement in Oldtown, Maryland.
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Inventory Number: AL-II-B-032
Wigfield Complex

Allegany County, Maryland

C. Mazurek

3/20/00

Capsule Summary

The Wigfield Complex is located off of Wagner Road within Green Ridge State Forest in the
vicinity of Oldtown, Maryland and includes three structures: a log house, a frame barn, and a log bam
ruin. The log house is two stories tall and three bays by 1 bay wide with V-notching employed for the
hand hewn logs attachment. The frame barn is not very old and is constructed of circular sawn lumber.
The log barn has the V-notching attachment just like the house but it is now a ruin. This complex dates
from the 1820's and was built by the Wigfield family who were early settlers of the area. These
structures are now abandoned.



Maryland Historical Trust
Maryland Inventory of
Historic Properties Form

Survey No. AL-II-B-032

1. Name of Property

(indicate preferred name)

historic Wigfield Log House

other

2. Location

street & number Wagner Road, 4 miles north of route 51, Green Ridge State Forest not for publication

city, town Oldtown X vicinity

county Allegany

3. Owner of Property

(give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Maryland Department of Natural Resources

street & number Tawes State Office Building, 580 Taylor Avenue telephone (410) 260-8192

city, town Annapolis state and zip code Maryland 21401

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Allegany County Courthouse tax map and parcel

city, town Cumberland liber and folio 453/1

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

__Individually Listed in the National Register/Maryland Register
___ Contributing Resource in National Register District
____Contributing Resource in Local Historic District
____Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
___Recorded by HABS/HAER

_x HSR or Research report at MHT

___ Other:

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count
____ district _X_ public ____ agriculture ____ landscape Contributing Noncontributing
_x_ building(s) ___ private commerce/trade ____ recreation/ 3 buildings
___ structure ___ both culture sites
___ site ___ defense ____ religion structures
____ object domestic social objects
education transportation 3 Total
funerary work in progress
government unknown Number of Contributing Resources
health care vacant/not in use previously listed in the Inventary

industry

other:
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7. Description Survey No AL-II-B-032

Condition

____ excellent _x deteriorated
___ good __ ruins

_ fair ___ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it exists
today.

The Wigfield structures are located in Allegany County within the vicinity of Oldtown, Maryland and are easily reached by taking
Route 51 to Wagner road and then following the dirt road about four miles to the complex. The Wigfield log house is located on
the left of Wagner road and is only about 10 feet from the shoulder of the road. This compiex consists of 3 structures: the log
house, a log barn ruin, and a wood frame bam; which are all located next to a small meandering stream.

The Wigfield log house is two stories tall and three bays by 1 bay wide, with approximate dimensions of 19 feet, by 25 feet.
The plan consists of an open hall with one room on the downstairs and one room on the upstairs. There is no evidence of a
chimney or later wood stove around which the house would be oriented, although the wood stove could have been removed.
On the interior the access structure, stairway or ladder, to the second floor is missing.

Framing construction consists of hand hewn logs with a notching technique of V-notching employed for the assembly of these
logs. The chinking between these logs consists of slabs of wood laid diagonaily to form a very tight barrier to the elements,
however to further insulate the spaces a mortar, which appears to be lime based, has been laid in between these slabs of
wood. A tin roof is the present day covering, but this is an obvious replacement as the original roof was most likely wood
shake. There is no basement or foundation, instead the logs rest directly on the ground.

The north elevation is a gable end and consists of one window on the first floor located directly under a window on the second
floor. Window trim is minimal and crudely constructed, and the sashes have all been removed. In a previous inventory form
completed in 1976 it was stated that the only remaining window contained 6/6 lights. The gable has wood siding laid vertically.

The east elevation is the front elevation and consists of two windows on the first floor with a door between them, and three
windows located directly above these on the second floor. A porch extension which extends 10 feet out from the facade is not
enclosed, but provides some protection from the elements. It is held up with log posts, however the flooring has deteriorated
leaving just a dirt floor undemeath. The porch roof forms a catslide roof as it extends from the main structure.

The south elevation is a gable end and has no windows or doors located on the facade. There are remnants of a simple
vertical wood siding, that probably covered the entire structure, but was removed during a later period, probably when the
structure was converted to the storage of hay. The pieces of siding that are left are circular sawn, and attached with modemn
nails, so they are most likely not the original sheathing.

The west elevation is the rear facade and contains on the first floor a doorway, a half window and a full window, in addition on
the second floor there is a full window and a half window. Just as on the east elevation there is a deteriorated porch extension,
which extends out 12 feet, however the a difference between the two is that this roof connection is dropped just below the main
roof.

The frame barn is located approximately 25 feet to the west of the log house, with overall dimensions of 13 feet by 18 feet.
The construction elements consist of vertical wood siding, a tin roof, and circular sawn lumber. A large doorway to the structure
is located on the western facade of this structure, which is still in good condition.

The log barn located approximately 150 feet away , however is not in good a condition as the frame barn, due to the loss of the
roof. Overall dimensions are 19 feet by 30 feet and just like the log house the logs on this barn have been constructed with V-
notching. They are spaced closer together than the house and there is no evidence left of any sort of chinking used. Vertical
siding covered the log structure, however most of this has deteriorated away. it appears as though the barn was only one story
tall, however on the south elevation there is a remnant of a wooden ladder so the structure may have had a loft. The interior

— appears to have been only one room. There are various doors and windows on the structure that have been boarded up.



8. Significance Survey No. AL-1I-B-032 -
Period Areas of Significance  Check and justify below
__1600-1699 ___ agriculture ___ economics __ health/medicine ___ performing arts
__1700-1799 ___ archeology __ education ___ industry ___ philosophy
X_1800-1899 _x architecture ___ engineering ___ invention ___ politics/government
_ 1900-1999 ___ art ___ entertainment/ ___ landscape ___ religion
___ commerce recreation architecture ___ science
___ communications __ ethnic heritage __ law ___ social history
__ community planning _x exploration/ ___ literature ___ transportation
conservation settlement ___ maritime history ___ other:
_ __ military
Specific dates Builder/Architect

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register x__ not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, and a narrative discussion of the history
of the resource and its context. (For compliance reports, discuss evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual).

The Wigfield log house is significant for its architecture, which is log construction, as well as for it’s construction during
the early settlement of the Oldtown area. Other surviving log houses in the area are the McLaughlin log house (AL-II-B-033)
which dates from 1815, and the Hartsock log house (AL-II-B-031) which dates from the 1890's.

Log construction was common in Western Maryland due to the fact that it was inexpensive, the resources were plenty,
and the construction was durable. “Log treatments utilized in the region fall into three groups: logs left in the round, logs hewn
square or sawn, and thickly sawn planks” (Lanier and Herman). The Wigfield log house is not an example of the crudest form of
log construction, with logs left in the round, nor is it the most finely constructed log construction, with logs sawn and planed into
planks and then attached with wooden pins. Instead this construction falls somewhere in between with the logs sawn flat on the
inner and outer faces and then the bark and natural roundness of the log left on the top and bottom sides where the chinking
usually hides this unfinished detail. In addition the use of V-notching in the attachment of the timbers, an easily constructed type
of joinery, suggests that this was not a high style log building, but rather a utilitarian log house.

According to the survey form completed by John Nelson, Joan Baldwin, and Steve Beale in 1976 the Wigfield log house
dates from around 1820. They state that “ in the 1800's, numerous log structures were built in Allegany county by the less
wealthy inhabitants and that this house was reported to have been built by Mr. Wigfield a name that is found in the early
settlement records of the Flintstone area”.

At the time of the 1976 survey this land with the log house complex located on it was part of the E-V Sportsman Club
which was owned by Anna S. Dixon. Since the last survey was completed this land transferred ownership to Christopher Coile
who also used the land as hunting grounds. He in turn recently sold the land to the Maryland Department of Natural Resources
for inclusion in Green Ridge State Forest.

These structures are now abandoned.
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MarY|and Historical Trust Survey No. AL-II-B-032
Maryland Inventory of

Historic Properties Form

Name

Continuation Sheet
Number 8 Page 2

HISTORIC CONTEXT:

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE PRESERVATION PLAN DATA

Geographic Organization: Western Maryland

Chronological/Developmental Period(s): Agricultural-Industrial Transition

Prehistoric/Historic Period Theme(s): Architecture, Landscape Architecture, and Community Planning

Resource Type:
Category: Buildings
Historic Environment : Rural
Historic Function(s) and Use(s): Agriculture, Sheilter

Known Design Source: Unknown
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9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. AL-TI-B-032

1. Lanier, Gabrielle and Herman, Bernard. Everyday Architecture of the Mid-Atlantic-
Looking at Buildings and Landscapes. The Johns Hopkins University Press-Baltimore and
London, 1997.

2. Maryland Historical Trust Inventory Form completed by John Nelson, Joan Baldwin, and
Steve Beale in 1976.

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property

Quadrangle name __Oldtown Quad Quadrangle scale __1:24,000

Verbal boundary description and justification

The land, the E-V Sportsman Club, which was surveyed in 1976 included 369 acres, of
which this has now been added to the Green Ridge State Forest holdings. The surveyed
complex bounds Warfield Road, a feeder stream to 0ld Town Creek, and two open fields.

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Charlie Mazurek, Specialist in Historic Structures

organization MD Department of Natural Resources date 3/20/00
street & number Tawes State Office Building, 580 Taylor Avenue telephone (410) 260-8192
city or town Annapolis state and zip code MD 21401

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland
Legislature to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2 023
410-514-7646



WIGFIELD 106 House, WAGNER RoAD, AL-TI-B-032
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WIGFIELD LOG HOUSE
AL-II-B-032
4.8 miles north of Route 51 on Wagner Rd.
ca. 1820

The Wigfield Log House represents one
of Allegany County's older log structures
that has been left to deteriorate. Hewn
logs compose the walls, which rest direct=-
ly on the ground. Dovetail notching was
used to pin the corners together on the
house. Windows and doors have been re-
moved to facilitate the present usage as

a cattle shelter.




MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST

AL~-II-B-032

INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

BINAME

HISTORIC
Wigfield Log House

AND/OR COMMON

BEILOCATION

STREET & NUMBER

4.8 miles north of Rt. 51 on Wagner Road

CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Oldt own X VICINITY OF Sixth
TATE : COUNTY
Maryland Allegan
- [FICLASSIFICATION
CATEGORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
__DISTRICT __PUBLIC __OCCUPIED X AGRICULTURE __MUSEUM
X BUILDING(S) X pRIVATE X unoccupieD __COMMERCIAL __PARK
__STRUCTURE __BOTH __WORK IN PROGRESS _EDUCATIONAL  __PRIVATE RESIDENCE
—SITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE —ENTERTAINMENT  __RELIGIOUS
—OBJECT —INPROCESS __YES: RESTRICTED —_GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
__BEING CONSIDERED — YES: UNRESTRICTED __INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPOR™ATICN
X Nno __MILTARY __OTHER
¢J OWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME
Anna S. Dixen Telephone #: 395-5148

STREET & NUMBER

P.C. Wagner Rd.

CITY. TOWN STATE, z1p code
_ Cldtowm X vicntyor Maryland 2155;3
"JLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION iber #: 453

COURTHOUSE. Folio #: 1

REGISTRY OF DEEDS,ETC. Allegany County Courthouse

STREET & NUMBER
30 Washington Street

CITY. TOWN
Cumberland,

STATE
Maryland

A REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TITLE

DATE

—FEDERAL _STATE _COUNTY __LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY. TOWN

STATE




AL-6-032

DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT XDETERIORATED XUNALTERED XORIGINAL SITE
__GOOD __RUINS __ALTERED __MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Wigfield Log House is located 4.8 miles north of Route 51,
on the east side of the Wagner Road.

The Wigfield Log House is a two story, three bay wide log
structure. The logs are hewn and are cornered with dove tail notches.
Joists are exposed between the lst and 2nd story. The whole structure
is built directly on the ground with no foundation. All windows, with
the exception of one containing 6 over 6 lights, have been removed,
and the doors are gone. A gabled roofcovers this rectangular structure,
and now has a replaced tin covering. Shed roofs supported by wooden
beams have been added to the front and rear of the house: the present
usage is hay storage. The structure has been allowed to deteriorate,
but was very sound for many years.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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Bl SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
. .= PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLUGY-PREHISTORIC —COMMUNITY PLANNING —.LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE __RELIGION
1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION __LAW —SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE _—ECONOMICS —_LITERATURE __SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 XARCHITECTURE —EDUCATION —MILITARY ~SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1798 __ART __ENGINEERING __MUSIC —THEATER
X_1800-1899 —COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT —PHILOSOPHY —_TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT ——OTHER (SPECIFY}
__INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES CA. 1829 BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Wigfield Log House was built circa 1820 as a simple shelter

for a subsistance type of farm. The log structure was a popular
form of housing in the early settlement time period. The facade was
inexpensive to build, easy to construct and extremely sturdy. 1In
the early 1800's, numerous log structures were built in the county
by the less wealthy inhabitants. Years after their construction,
many of these buildings were covered with a variety of sidings; how-
ever, on this particular structure, the logs have been left exposed.

The house is reported to have been built by Mr. Wigfield, a
name that is found in the early settlement records of the Flintstome

area. The house is badly deteriorated and is presently used as a
live stock shelter.l

1 Interview with John L. Carder, September 22, 1976

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



AL-1-8-¢32.
EIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Allegany County Land Records, Cumberland, Maryland

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

[JGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 369 acres

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY —
31 FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
John Nelson, Joan Baldwin & Steve Beale
ORGANIZATION DATE
Allegany County Historical Sites Survey 12/11/76
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
507 National Highwav 777-8991
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Lavale, Maryland Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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myintory no. AL=IE -R= 032 .

453~ &
DATE: ?/zz'/L;L 369 4o B

REMCLEIING: Drastic, moderate, minor Cficeoris

_ N/AME OF FRGPERTY: W I'Q'QltlJ- Loa HOW.;;’-— De r%,[ /yem%, 795-5%¢

~J ) :
LOGATICN (F PROPERTY: H.Zmiles pprth a{f Sl _on w"‘jr‘f Roal
DIRECTICN DWELLING FicES: We st 39 5- /4L |
NAME CF OWNER: E-\. Sgortsman Club (A"\ﬂo- S. 0:‘%_}
ADDRESS: [a / P /p a/ /0 0
bg ' -
ﬂ/j{nuh /}70 .:2/'7'5.

STORIES: 1( ) 2(LY'3( ) u4( ) 5( ) 6( ) BAYS: 1()2()30-’(#()5()&)7()()

WINGS, ADDITICHS:

Dwelling Shape: (squere, cross, )

WALL CCNSTRUCTION:

( ) FRiNE: Bevel, clapboard, weatherboard, wood shingles, board & batten (type?)
( ) BRICK: Bond type- common, Inglish, Flemish. Sketch variants.
( ) STONE: Bond type- rubble, ashlar (random or regular), quoins-plain, rusticated
(106
( ) Other: Coverings
WALL FEATURES: BELT COURSE, PILASTERS, OTHERS Pla iy

PCUNDATICNS: HIGH, IOW, BRICK, STONE B/ '+ on Tk
WATER T/BLE: |FONY, FLAIN, BEVELED, KCULDED BRICK

”“Oi“' TRIM, ﬁ UTTERS: 1/1( ) 2/2( ) 6/60/)/9/6() 9/9( ) other( )
pegged () nailed( ) wide ( ) narrow ( ) mitred ( ) pediment ( )

ENTR,NCE, DCORS: LOCATICN:
HARDWARE: original( ) replaced( )
FAN LIGHT, TRANSCM, SIDE LIGHTS, PLAIN
Paneled, Verticle, Horizontal Boards

CORNIUE, BARGE, FAVES: (crown, fascia, bed)
original( ) replaced( ) Rafter Ends, Modillions, Dentils, Frieze,
Architrave

ROGF:  GaBlE FRONT, ”, HIP, SUED, 1 ANSARD, G/HMPRML, FLAT, TORMERS #
RATENRTIAL: wood shingles slate,@ asphalt orlgmd'l( ) replaced(?
PORCHES: SHATE OF RCOF - shed(W hip( ) pable( ) 2, Front & Rosr— tor A ﬂi‘m

CHIMNEY!: WNUMBER BRICK( ) sTCeME( ) CCRBEIED( ) originzl( ) replaced ( )

1LOC/TION: Flush end{ ) Inside end( ) Cutside end( ) Central( ) Interior ( )

ARCHEYS: Door and window: l-ieystone,, Yegmental, Jemicircular
COMMEN'TE
Use - Huub Choros c
fignificance -~ &r
Date Constructed - Co—a 330
Condition - [ederior
—
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